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Independent Auditor's Report

To
The Members of
EASTERN INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of EASTERN INVESTMENTS LIMITED
(“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, the statement of Profit and Loss
{including Other Comprehensive Income], the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes In
Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

7. In our opinien and ta the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforecaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") In the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards ['Ind
AS') specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affalrs of the
Company as at 31 March 2024, and its profit (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and
changes in equity for the vear ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
("SA"s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Respansibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our
report, We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules theraunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion an the standalane financial statements,

Key Audit Matters
4, Key audit matters are those matters that, which in our professional judgment, were of most significance in

aur audit of the standalone financial statements of the current peried. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whele, and in forming our opinion thereon,
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and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters, We have determined that there are no key audit
matters to communicate in our report.

Emphasis of Matter

5 We draw attention to the following matters In the Notes to the standalone financial statements, which
describe the uncertainty related to the outcome.

al Naote No. 3 of Standalone financial statements states that Company has made long term
investments amounting to Rs. 4,362.52 lakhs In its subsidiary, The Bisra Stone Lime Company
Limited. The aforesaid investment continues to be valued at cost whereas as per the latest
audited financial statements of the subsidiary, its net worth is negative.

b Note No. 26.1{a) of Standalone financial statements describe the non-payment of Rent and cess
on land revenue amounting to Rs. 110.54 |akhs on Lawrence Property at Bauria, Howrah, West
Bengal. The said property is yet to be muted in the name af the Company.

¢} Note No. 26.1(b) of Standalone financial statements describes that demand of Rs.58.45 lakhs
fram Additional Commissioner of Stamp Revenue, Government of West Bengal for transfer of
cshares of Orissa Minerals Development Company Ltd (OMDC) and The Bisra Stone Lime Company
Ltd. (BSLC) to Eastern Investments Ltd (EIL) from President of India has not been considerad in
sccounts, since the company contends that the said stamp duty is not applicable on it as the
transfer of shares were affected by virtue of Restructuring Scheme approved by the Union
Cabinet and the said transfer of shares took place from the President of India without any
financial consideration.

d) Note No. 27.2 of Standalone financial statements states that the Company could not comply with
the percentage of financial income requirement of the REI Revised Guidelines issued for NBFC.

Qur opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

6, The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other infarmation
comprises the infarmation included in the Management Disclssion and Apalysis, Board’s Report including
Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance Report a nd Sharehalder
Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the ather informatlon and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, basad on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is 2
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material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard,

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

7. The accompanying standalone financial statements have been approved by the Company's Board of
Directars. The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive Income,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133
of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibllity alse includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

8. In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liguidate the
Compary or ta cease aperations, or has no realistic alternative but to do se.

9. The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

10, Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whola are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or In the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

11, As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism thro ughout the audit. We also;

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and abtaln audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis far our opinion, The risk of not detecting a
material misstaterment resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error;, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

Af L Fis
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3.

14,

15,

Obtain an understanding of internal financial central relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies

Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on wheather the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financlal statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls;

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

Cone¢lude on the appropriatensss of Board of Directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based an the audit evidence obtained, whether a2 material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability te continue as a going concern, [f we
eonclude that 3 material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence abtained up to the date of our auditar’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern;

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
trarsactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone
financial statements may be Influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i}
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirernents regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, refated
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are theretore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Continuation Sheet
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Other Matter

a) The Company has only one independent director on its bBoard as on 31.03.24 but as per the
cection 149 of the Companies Act 2013 regarding constitution of board every listed public
company Is required to have at least one-third of the total number of directors as independent
directors. Hence there is non-compliance in this regard.

b) Section 177 of the Act read with Rule € and 7 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers]
Rules, 2014 deals with the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee shall consist of a minimum of
three directors with independent directors forming a majority. Since the company has only one
independent director on its board as on 31.03.24, hence, there is non-compliance of Section 177
of the-Act.

c) As required by section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Nomination and Remuneration committes
<hall consist of three or more non-executive directors out of which not less than one-half shall be
independent directors. Since the company has only one independent director on its board, hence,
there is non-compliance of Section 178 of the Act.

Qur opinion above on the standalone financial statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory
requirements below, are not modified in respect of these matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory requirements

16. As reauired under section 143(5) of the of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure-A, a
Statement on the Directions / Sub-Directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India after
complying the suggested methodology of Audit, the action taken thereon and its impact on the accounts
and financial statements of the Company,

17. As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), Issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure-B, a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable to the Campany.

18, Further to our comments in Annexure B, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we
report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the Information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our au dit of the accompanying standalone
financial statements;

b] In cur opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account,

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Sectlan 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules thereunder;
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e] The provisions of Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to Governmerit
Companies In terms of notification F.No.1/2/2014-CL-V dated 13th lufie, 2017. issued by the
Ministry of Company Affairs, Government of India.

fjl  With respect to the adequacy of the intermal financial contrales with reference to financial
statement of the Company as on 31 March 2024 and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in Annexure-C wherein we have expressed an unmodified apinion,
and

g] With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 [as amended), in our opinian and to the best of
our infarmation and according to the explanations given to us:

i} The Company, as detailed in Note 26.1 to the standalone financial statements, has disclosed
the impact of pending litigaticns on its financial pesition as at 31 March 2024;

i} The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derlvative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2024;

lif} There wasanamount of Rs. 2.27 lakhs for F.Y, 2011-13, Rs, 1.89 lakhs for F.Y, 2012-13, As. 0.14
lakhs for F.Y. 2013-14 and Rs. 2.68 lakhs for F.¥. 2015-16 totalling to Rs. 5.98 lakhs related to
unpaid/ unclaimed dividend which were required to be transferred to the Investor Educatian
and Protection Fund (IEPF) by the Company on 25-10-2019, 26-10-2020, 31-10-2021 and 256-
10-202 3 respectively but the same has not been transferred to IEPF till the date of our report.

iv] ajThe management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or Invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds} by the
company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {“the
intermedaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or Invest In other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficlaries”)
or pravide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficlaries;

b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Company from any
persons) or entitylies), including forelgn entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded [n writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsosver by or
an behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
thie ke on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢} Based on such audit procedures performed as considerad reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
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representations under sub-clause (i) and (i} of Rule 11[e}, as provided under |a) and (b} above,
contain any material misstatement.

v)  No dividend is declared or paid by the Company during the year and hence comolliance with
section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 js not applicable to the Company.

il Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company, in respect of financial year
commencing on 1 April 2023, has used an accounting software for maintaining its books ot account
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility, however, the audit trail feature was not
snabled at the database level for accounting software to log any direct data changes, used for
maintenance of records by the Company.

For B Chhawchharia & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.:305123E

urav Kumar laiswal
Partner
Membership No.: 310588
UDIN: 24810588 AKPKE=UFS58
Place: Kolkata
Date: 24" September 2024
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Annexure — A to the Auditors’ Report
DIRECTIONS / SUB-DIRECTIONS UNDER SECTION 143(5) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ISSUED BY THE
COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS OF EASTERN INVESTMENTS
LIMITED FOR CONDUCTING AUDIT OF ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR 2023-24.

G e e S impact on Financial
(1) Whether the Company has system NIL
in place to process all the accounting | Company for the year are processed ‘
transactions through IT system? If yes, | through the IT system vide Tally ERP
the implications of processing of | sofware. However, the audit trail
accounting transactions outside 1T | gooy e wag not enabled at the database
system on the integrity of the accounts d
along with the financial implications, if fevsl 't I:ag- 3ty direct datd) changes,
| any, may be stated. used far maintenance of records by the
Company,
{2) Whether there is any restructuring | As per the information and exmaﬁatiuns MiL
of an existing Loan or cases of waiver/ | given by the management, there is no
write off of debt/loans/interests, et<. | rectructuring of loan or cases of
i i lend?r 38 !h'.s Comppany due waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest
to the Company's inability to repay the
laan? If yes, the financial impact may etc made by a lender to the Company
be stated. Whether such cases are during the year.
properly accounted for? (In case lendar
is a Government Company, then this
direction is also applicable for statutory
auditor of lender Company).
H} Whether the fund (grant /subsidy | As per the information and explanaticns ML
etc.) received/ receivable for specific | given by the management, the Company
scheme from Central/State | has not received any funds from
| Government or it agencies were | Central/ State agencies.
properly accounted for/utilised as per
its term and condition? List the case of
| deviation,
|
For B Chhawchharia & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.; 305123E

Gl
m r Jaiswal

Partner

Membership No.: 310588
UDIN: 243 10588 &K Pk =T 58
Place: Kolkata

Date: 24" September 2024

|ﬁ;5!i|_: 8af 14
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Annexure referred to in paragraph (2) under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
requirements” of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Eastern Investments Limited
on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books af account and
records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and beliel, we report that:

i, Inrespect of the Company's Property, Plant & Equipment’s |

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative detalls and
situation of fixed assets. The Gross carrying value of fixed assets is Rs. 3.28 Lakhs.

b) As explained to us, Property, Plant and Equipment fixed assets comprise of Land, Building, &lock and
Rallway Siding were not physically verified during the year under audit.

) The title deeds of all the immavable properties {other than properties where the company Is the |essee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) not made available to us however,
the facts disclosed in the financial statements are tabulated below:

Description Gross Title deeds | Whether Property Reason for not being held in the |

of item of carrying held in the promoter, director | held  since | name of the company

property value [Rs. | name of or their relative or | which date

in Lakhs] employee

PPE- 2.18 No MNo 1984 The Company had a land of 76.77

Freehold Acres in the name of Lawrance Jute

Lard mill. Out of this, the Government of
West Bengal had acquired 27.58
Acres on 25.08.1976 under the
provisions of Section &{3] of West
Bengal Estates Acquisition Act,
1953.

d] The Company has adopted cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment. Accordingly, reparting
under clause 3(i){d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

e) According to the infarmation and explanations given to us and the recards maintained by the Company,

no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made there under.

il. a) The Company has no inventories during the year, hence paragraph 3{ii) of the Order s not applicable to
the Company.

b] The company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in apgregate,

from banks or financial institutions on the basl

curity of current assets.
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ili.  The Company has made Investments in companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other partias
during the yaar, in respect of which:

a) The Company is a Mon-Banking Finance Company and its principal business is to give loans, Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b} In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the investments made,
guarantzes provided, security given and terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the
nature of loans and guarantees provided are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

¢} The Company does not have any outstanding loans and advances in the nature of loans at the beginning
af the current year nor has granted any leans or advances in the nature of loans during the year
Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(iii)(c), 3{iiij(d}, 3(iii){e) and 3{iii)(F} of the Order is not applicable 1o
the Company.

v. The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under sections 185 and 186 of the Act.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposit or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be deposits within the meaning
of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended).
Accordingly, reparting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vi,  According to the information and explanation given to us, Central Government has not prescribed
maintenance of cost records under sub- section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

vil, a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues Including provident fund, income tax,
Goods and Service Tax and any other statutory dues as applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.
According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no outstanding statutory dues as on
31st of March, 2024 for a periad of more than six months from the date they became paya ble.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues referred in sub-
clause [a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute except
for the following:

Nature  of | Nature of | Period to which [ Gross Amount | Authority ~where dispute s
Setue Dt Terias S SURRTOG . fpending

' Income Tax Act, | Income Tax A, 2010-11 77.01 Deputy [ Assistant Commissioner '
1561 of Income Tax

= |

Income Tax Act, | Income Tax | AY. 2009-10 24.65 Deputy / Assistant Commissioner
1561 and Interest of Income Tax

_.Stamp Act, | Stamp Duty | F.Y.2011-12 58.45 Additional Commissioner of Stamp ‘
1899 Revenue, Govt of West Bengal
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wiil.

Xl

il

®ill,

®iv,

HY,

According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered or disclosed
a5 income, during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1861 which have not been
previously recorded in the books of accounts;

Accarding to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any loans ar other
borrowings from any lender. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix] of the Order is net applicable to the
Company.

a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer ar further public offer {Including
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{x)(a) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partly or optionally convertible) and hence, reporting under clause 3x){b} of
the Order is not Applicable to the Company.

a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by
the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered by our
audit,

b} According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143
of the Act has been filed by the auditers in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companles {Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

¢ According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by the
management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during the
yEar.

The Company Is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3{xii) of the Order is not applicable ta the Company.

in our opinion and atcording to the information and explanations glven to us, all transactions entered into
by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where
applicable. Further, the details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone
financial statements, as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures
specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards] Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the
Act].

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to and
consequently, does not have an internal audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the Act
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{xiv) of the Order is nat applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us the Company, during the year, has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them and accordingly, reporting
under clause 3{xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section 192 of the Act are
not applicable to the Company.
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xi.,  a) The Company is required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 and
the company has obtained necessary registration.

b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid
Certificate of Registration {CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

¢) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, paragraph 3({xvi}{c) of the Order is not applicable.

d) The group to which the company belongs does not have more than one CIC as part of it. Accordingly,
paragraph 3({xvi)(d) of the Order Is not applicable,

wvii.  The company has incurred cash loss of Rs. 53,01 Lakhs during the current financial year and Rs. 504 .06 Lakh
in the immediately preceding financial year.

xviil.  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the company during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3{xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

xix.  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment
of financial liabllities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on
the date of the audit report that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date; We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
sssurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date will get
discharged / not discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

wx. The section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 Is applicable to the company. However, the company (s not
required to spend for CSR activities by virtue of section 135 (5) being average net loss of the company
during the three immediately preceding financial year.

wii.  This is the audit report of standalone company, the reporting under clause 3 {xxl) of the said Order In
respect of qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors is not applicable.

For B Chhawchharia & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 305123E

4,

rav Kumar Jaiswal
Partner
Membership No.: 310588
UDIN: 24 3 /0588 RKPK2UISES
Place: Kalkata
Date: 24" September 2024
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Annexure - € to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act”)

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of EASTERN
INVESTMENTS LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with
reference to standalone Financial Statement based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Nate on Audit of Internal financial contrals over financial reporting issued by ICAIL These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial contrals that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errars, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation af reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial contral with reference to
stanidalone financial statement based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note”) and Standards on
Auditing, |ssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {ICAl} and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial control
with reference to standalone financial statement , and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reparting (the “Guidance Note") issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Cur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
contral with reference to standalone Financial Statement and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of
imternal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial control with reference to standalone Financial Statement, assessing the risk
that @ material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating eHectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
sesessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidences we have abtalned is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
| with reference to standalone Financial Statement.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Control with reference to standalone Financial Statement

6 Acampany's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statement is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial control with reference to standalone Financial Statement includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2] provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recarded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone Financial 5tatements

7. Bacause of the inherent limitations of internal financial control with reference to standalone financial
statement, including the possibility of collusion or improper management averride of controls, material
misstatements due ta error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statement to future periods are subject to the
risk that internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statement may become inadeguate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

8. Inouropinion, to the best of our information and aceording to the explanations given to us the Campany has, in
all material respects, maintained adequate internal financial controls system with reference to standalone
financial statements were operating effectively as of March 31, 2024, based on the internal control with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the ICAL

Faor B Chhawchharia & Co.

Charteraed Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 305123E

yued

gurav Kumar Jaiswal
Partner
Membership No.: 310588
UDIN: 2431 DSAE kP ZU 9558
Place: Kolkata
Date: 24" September 2024
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Eastern Investments Limited

Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31.03.2024

Amount in Rs. lakhs

Jeduray Kumar lalswal
Partner
Membarship No: 310588
UDINND: 24 3] 05 88K PR= IS5 it
Place: Kolkata  24th September’ 2024

Particulars ":‘:‘ As at 31,03.2024| As at 31.03.2023
ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 2 _2.28 3.28
3.28 3.28
(B} Financial assets
(1} Invastments 3 26,100,47 26,055,456
(I} Sther financial assets 4 * 437.00
) Non-current tax assets | net) L 58.01 5186
(d) Deferred tax Assets (Net) B 121.47 111.44
(e) Cther non-current assets Fi 0.03 0.26
Totzl non-current assets (A) 26,284.18 26,659.30 |
[2) Current assets
(a) Firancial assets
(i} Other investments 3 . -
(1) Cash and cash equivalents B.1 2,53 7.08
(i} Bank balances ather than (i) above B.2 19,12 59.12
{iv) Loans 9 £ -
(w) Other financial assets - £92.38 pa.09
Lkl Other current assets f 0.24 0.24
————— Total current assets (B) 714.27 274.53
Tntal assets (A+B 26,998.45 26,933.83
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ]
(1) Equity
{a) Equity share capital 1D 144,44 1,44
(b N Other aguity 11 26 575,55 26,573.25
Total equity (A) 26,719.99 26,717.69
Liabilities
{2) Mon-current liabilities
(a}) Provislons 12 70.35 70,29
Total non-current liabilities (B) 70.35 70.29
(3) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilites
(1} Trade payablas
(a) Total sutstanding dues of micro 13 .
enterprises and small entraprises
(b} Total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro entraprises and small 13 0.50 .50
gnterpnses
L) Other fnancial llabilities 14 204.76 141 RS
() Dther current liabilities 13 __2.B5 345
Total current liabilities ( C) 208.11 145.85
Total liabilities (B+C) il 27B.46 216.14
Total equity and liabilities {A+({B+C)} 26,998.45 26,933.83
Accompanying notes to the financial statements 1to 27
Notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial sEtemeants
In terms of our report of even date For &nd on behalf of Board of Directors
—_— b i B
For B. Chiawchharia & Co L Ginn e~ £ ___15- FM?
Chartered Accountants {_M wp.ﬁ:) (S.C. Pandey)
Firm Hegn.Mo: 305123E Director Managing Director

X4

5
[Pu

Chief Financial Officer

Sarkar)

S fGu bl
{5 Raja Babu)
Company Secratary




Eastern Investments Limited
Standalone Statement of profit and loss for the Year ended 31.03.2024
Amount in Rs. lakhs
Particula Year ended Year ended
T Notes No- |  31.03.2024 31.03.2023
i Revenue from operatian i6 50,21 36,99
11 Other income 17 4535 19.51
ITI  |Total revenus {1+ II} 95.56 56.90
v EXPENSES
() Employee benofits expense 1B B4.17 48 33
{b) Other sxpenses 13 1535 19.12
_ |Total expenses (IV] 103.56 B7.50
v Profit before exceptional items and Tax (III - IV) (8.00) {10.60)
VI Exceptional Items - (470.68)
VII |Prefit before Tax (V 4 VI) (8.00) {4B1.28)
VIII |[Tax Expense
(1) Current tax 20 - 3.04
__|i2) Defarred tax 20 (10.10]) {126.76))
| |Total tax expense (VIII) {10.10) (123.72)
IX Profit for the year (VII - VIII) 2.10 {357.56)
X  |Other comprehensive income
A (i) Items that will not be recyclad to profit or loss
- Remeasurement gains / {losses) on defined benefit plans Q.27 0.03
+ Income tax relating: to items that will not be reciassifisd to (0.07) (0.01}
profit or |oss _
Taotal other comprehensive income for the year (X} 0.20 0.02
X1 |Total comprehensive income for the year (IX + X) 2.30 (357.54)
%11 |Earnings per equity share: - =
11} Basic and diluted 21 0.15 [24.76}
fccompanying nates to the financial statements 1to 27
MNotes referred 1o above form an |ntegral part of the financial statemenis
In terms of our report of even date For and on behalf of Board of Diractors
l'\
- I\
For 8, Chhawchharia & Co Y Lontibehaned €l
Charterad Azcountants w '[,) {5.C. Pandey)
Firre PRan No: 309123 Maraging Direcios
yi'blr‘
ray Kumar Jalsyal
artner
hembership Mo 310588 56 I -M" MJ
UDINND 2 581 a SRE B PH 2955 & {Pus Earh:ar:l- (S Raja Babu)
Piace: Wolkata |, 24th September’ 2024 Chilef Financial Officer Company Secretary




Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the Year ended 31.03.2024

A.|Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year
Adjustments far:

FYTRI
Finance cost recognised In profit or loss

Movements in working capital;

{Increase) / decrease in other assets
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables

Increase / (decreasa) in pther lisbiiites
Increase / (decraase) in provisions

Cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid

MNet cash generated from operating activities

B. |Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds an sale of financial assets and investments
MNet cash generated from investing activities

C

H

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid on equity shares

Tax on dividends paid on equity shares
Finance cost paid

MNet cash used in financing activities
|
Met increase or (decrease) in eash or cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Year ended Year ended
Particula
TR 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
2.10 {357.56)
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss (10.10) (122.72)
Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets - .
Fair value {gain)/loss arising from the investment classified as {45.01) (19.74)
Provision for leave encashment written back in profit or loss -
(53.01) (501.02)
{Increase) / decrease in other financial assers (444,29) 218.22
0.21 1.14
- (0.09)
Increase / (decrease) in other financial liabiiities 62.87 110.30
{0.61) 0.28
0,33 ey
(434.50) (167.89)
(7.05) {5.68)
{441.55) {173.57)
437.00 166.40
437.00 166.40
(4.55) {7.16)
7.08 14.29
2.53 7.08

Meste:

AS 7 - Cash Flow Staternents

In terms of our report of even date

For B, Chhawchhana & Co
Chartered Accountants
Eilrey g.n.Na: EEIZ?:E

ray Kumar Jaiswal

1Partner

Membership No: 310588

UDIN ND: 24 3} pc B8 BKFPHZV G568

Place: Kolkata ,24th September’ 2024

e

2) The above Cash Flow has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Indlan Accounting Standards Ind

b} Previous figure year's have been regrouped wherever necesarry, to conform current year's classilfcation

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

n
< — Sungl chobo i~
( KA Tv)

Director

72

(Pus Sarkar)

Chief Financial Officar

(5.C. Pandey)
Managing Chirector

Lo b
(5 Raja Babu)

Company Secretary
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1. General
Information

2. Significant
accounting
policies

2.1 .a Application
of new and
revised  IND
ASs

2.1.b Statement
of
complian
e

22 Basis of
preparation  and
prasentation

Eastern Investments Limited

Eastern Investments Limited (hereinafter referred as "EIL" or “Company”) was
incorporated on incorporated on 03 Jlanuary 1927. It is classified as Union
Government company and is registerad at Registrar of Companies, Kolkata, It was
naticnalized by the Government of Indig by virtue of the Bird & Company Ltd.
{Acquisition and Transfer of Undertaking and other Properties) Act, 1980 and it
tecame a PSU w.e.f 19th March, 2010, It is a shell company, sohot classified by DPE.
EIL is listed at Calcutta Stock Exchange. EIL is holding company of The Oricsa
Minerals. Development Company Limited and The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited.
It became a subsidiary company of RINL (Rashtriva Ispat Nigam Limited) on 5th
January, 2011,

' The financial stataments of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the

relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
A4S} prescribed under section 133 of the Compames Act, 2013,

Mo new Ind AS was introduced or no revision to any existing Ind As has been made
before 319 March, 2023.

The financial statements have been prepared In accordance with Ind AS notified under
the Companies Act {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015

Up to the year ended 31% March, 2019 the Company prepared its financial statements
in accordance with the requirement of previous GAAP, which includes Standards
notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, These are the
Company's 3™ Ind AS Financial Statements. The date of transition to Ind AS is 1%
April, 2018,

Prior to adoption of Ind AS , the company had been preparing Its financial statements
for all perinds up to and including year ended 31% March, 2018 |n accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles in the India, Including accounting standards
specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 ("Indian GAAP"). The financial statemeants for the
year ended 31% March, 2019 and the Company's fourth financial statements prepared
in accordance with Ind ASs,

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or noncurrent as per
Company's operating cycle and ather criterla set out in Schedule-II1 of the Companies
Act 201 3. Based on the nature of business, the Company has ascertained its operating
cycle as 12 months for the purpese of Current-noncurrent classification of assets and
llabilities.

The Company has adopted all the Issued Ind Ass and such adoption was carried out in
accordance with IND AS 101 - First Time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards.

The Company has transited from Indian GA&P which is Its previous GAAP, as defined
imind AS 101.

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except far
financial Instruments (other than investment in subsidiaries) that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting pericd, a5 explained in the accounting policies
below. The Company has elected optlon to carry Its investments in subsidiaries at
deemed cost being the carrying amount for such Investments under previous GAAP at
transition date.

ind AS Accounting Policies

@%




Eastern Investments Limited

Historical cost s generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange Tor goods and services,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset™or paid to transfer a
liability in an arderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
anothar valuation technigue, In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liabllity, the
Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/ or disclosures in
these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share based
payment transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102 - Share based
Payments and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 - Inventories or value in use in Ind AS
36 = Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categarised
into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

« Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the Company can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1,
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

+ Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset ar Habillity.

The principal accounting policies are set out belaw.

2.3 Property, ' Property, plam_and equipmeant held for use in the prﬁuctTcn or/ and supply of gnndé

Plant and or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost,
Equipment less any subseguent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
Impairmeant losses,

Initial Measurement

The initial cost at cash price egulvalent of property, plant and equipment acquired
comprises its purchase price, including import duties and nen-refundable purchase
taxes, any directly attributable cests of bringing the assets to its working condition
and location and present value of any asset restoration obligation or obligatory
decommissioning costs for ks intended use.

Expenditure incurred on development of freehald land is capitalized as part of the cost
of the land.

In case of self-constructed assets, cost Includes the costs of all materals used In
construction, direct labour, allocation of overheads, directly attributable borrowing
COsLs,

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure on day- to- day servicing of an item af praperty, plant and
equipment |s recognised in profit or loss as incurred, However, expenditure on major
maintenance or repairs including cost of replacing the parts of assets and overhaul
costs where [t Is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will

Ind AS Accounting Policies




2.4  Investment
Property

Eastern Investments Limited

be avallable to the Company, are capitalised and the carrying amount of the tem so
replaced is derecognised,

Insurance spares that are specific to a fixed asset and valuing mare than Rs.1 lakh per

unit are capitalised along with the main assets. All other spares are recognised as
Inventory, excapt for spares which are having a useful life greater than a year and can
to be identifled as components in an asset are capitalised.

Depreciation

Depreciation on assets are provided over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation on
assets are provided of a straight line basis over the useful life of the asset in the
mannar prescribed under Schedule II of the Companles Act, 2013,

The estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each year end, with the
effect of any changes In estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. Each
companent of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant
in relation to the total cost of that item s depreciated separately If its useful life
differs from the others components of the asset.

Property, plant and eguipment which are subject to compenentisation, comprises of
main assets, componentised assets and remalnders, If any. The useful life of
remainders carry the life of main assets unless the same based on technical
evaluation is considered to be lower than that of the main asset, In which case, such
lower useful life is considered.

The residual value of property, plant and eguipment are maintained at 5% of the
original cost except for assets costing up to Re5,000 which are fully depreciated in the
year of capitalization.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and eguipment is
prospectively depreciated over the revised useful life of respective assets,

Freshald land I5 not depreciated.

Depreciation commencas when the assets are ready for their ntended use,
Depreciated assets on property, plant and equipment and accumulated depreciation
thereon are retained fully until they are derecognised or classified as non-current
aseets held for sale.

Disposal of assets

An item of property, plant and eguipment is derecognised upon dispesal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or [oss arising an the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the
carrying -amount of the asset and Is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

. I t ition to Ind AS
For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value
of all its property, plant & equipment recognized as of 1% April, 2018 (transition date)
measurad as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as |ts deemed cost
as of the transition date.

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/ or for capital
appreciation (including property under construction for such purposes). Investment
properties are measured Initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are measured in accordance with Ind AS 18%s

Ind AS Accounting Policies




2.3 Impairment

2.6 Provisions
and
contingencies

Eastern Investments Limited

requirements for cost madel, other than those that meet the criteria to be classified as
held for sale (or are included in a disposal group that is classified as hald for sale) in
accordance with Ind AS 105,

An Investment property Is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment
property s permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecodnition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amaount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derscognised.
i ngib

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an Impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset |5 estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any}. Where it Is not possible to estimate the recaverable amount of an individual
asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value In use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using & pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
the statement of profit and loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of Its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or cash-genserating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss ig
recognised immediately in the statementof profit and loss,

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event and it is probable ("maore likely than not”) that it is required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
chligation,

The amount recognised as z provision (s the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account
the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured
using the estimated cash flows to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is
the present value of those cash flaws. The discount rate used is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money in that jurisdiction
and the risks specific to the liability,

Contingent Liabilities
Contingent liabilitles arising from past events the existence of which would be

confirmed only on occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Company or contingent liabilities where




PR Financial
Instruments

Eastern Investments Limited

there |s a present cbligations but it is not probable that economic benefits would be
required to settle the obligations are disclosad in the financial statements unless the
possibility of any outflow in settlement is remote.

Contingent Assets

Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence
will enly be confirmed by the ocecurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events not wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent assets are disclosed
in the financial statements when inflow of economic benefit is probable on the basis of
judgment of management. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are
adjusted to reflect the current management estimate. Contingent assets are disclosed
in the Anancial statements when inflow of economic benefit is probable.

All financial assets are recognised on trade date when the purchase of a financial
asseb is under a contract whose term requires delivery of the financial asset within the
time frame established by the market concerned. Financlal assets are initially
measured at fair value, plus transaction costs, except for these financlal assets which
are classified as at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) at inception. All recognised
financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at sither amortised cost
or fair value.

Financial assets are classified as 'eguity instrument’ IF it s a non-derivative and meets
the definition of ‘equity’ for the issuer {under Ind AS 32 Fimancial Instruments:
Presentation). All other non-derivative financial assets are 'debt instruments’

Debt instru
are met:

+«  the asset is fhield within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows: and

the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount gutstanding,

Debt instruments meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus
transaction costs. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective Interest methed less any Iimpairment, with interest recognised on an
effective yield basis in investment income,

i i rehe
Debt Instruments are measured at FYTOCI If both of the following canditions are met:

+ the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hald assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows and selling assets; and
the cantractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding

Debt instruments meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus
transaction costs. They are subseguently measured at fair value with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income, except
for impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains or losses, Interest
caledlated using the effective interest method is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss in investment income. When the debt instrument is derecognised the




Eastern Investments Limited

cumutative gain or loss p;l‘E".l'iCIL:IEW recognised in other cumpmhensive Income s
reclassified to the statement of profit and loss account as a reclassification
adjustment.

At initial recognition, an irrevocable election is made (on an instrument-by-instrument
basis) to designate investments in eguity instruments other than held for trading
purpose at FVTOCT.

A financial asset is held for trading if;

+ It has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term:
or

on Initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that the Company manages together and has evidence of a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

it Is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedaing instrument
or a financial guarantes,

[nvestments in equity instruments st FYTOCT are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve. Where the asset is disposed of,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is directly reclassified to retained earnings.

For equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
no impairments are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss in investment income when the Company's right to receive the
dividends Is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the entity; and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

Other Financial Assets (Contract Assets)

Accounts Receivables is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services,
transferred to the Customer. If the Company performs by transferring the goods or
sarvices to a Customer before the Customer pays consideration or payment is due,
Accounts Recelvables (in the nature of Contract Asset) is recognised for the Earned
Cansideration that Is conditional,

Einancial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria of classifying as amortised cost or fair
value through other comprehensive incomedescribed above, or that meet the criteria
out the entity has chosen to designate as at FYTPL at initial recognition, are measured
at FVTPL.

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company
designates an investment that is not held for trading at FVTOCI at Initial recognition,

Financial assets classified at FVTPL are initially measured at fair value excluding
transaction costs.

Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value, with any gains or
loss@e arising on remeasurament recognised |n the statement of profit and loss. The

Ind AS Accounting
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Eastern Investments Limited

net gain or loss recognised in the statemeant of profit and loss is included in the 'other
gains and losses’ ine item.

Interest Income on debt Instruments at FVTPL is Included in the net gain or loss
described above.

Dividend incame an investments in equity instruments at FVTPL is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss in investment income when the Company’s right to
receive the dividends is established, It is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the entity: and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably,

Trade receivables, loans and other receivables are classified as subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Trade and other receivables which does not contain any

significant financing component are stated at their transaction value as reduced by
impairment losses, if any,

Loans and other receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate (EIR} method.

Impairment of financial assets

On initial recognition of the financial assets, a loss allowance for expected credit loss
i5 recognised for debt instruments at amortised cost and FVTOCL. For debt
instruments that are measured at FVTOCI, the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income in the statement of profit and loss and does not reduce the
carrying amount of the financial asset in the balance sheet.

Expected credit losses of a financial instrument is measured in & way that reflects:

« an unblased and probabillty-weighted amount that is determined by
evaluating a range of possible outcomes;

the time value of money; and

reasanable and supportable infarmation that is avallable without undue cost or
effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

At each reporting date, the Company assess whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since |nitial recognition.

When making the assessment, the Company compares the risk of a defaull occurring
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a defauilt occurring
on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and consider
reasgnable and supportable infermation, that is available without undue cost or effort,
that is indicative of significant Increases in credit risk since Initial recognition.

If, at the reparting date, the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for
that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-manth expected credit losses. If,
the credit risk on that financial Instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an
amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses.

The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss
allowance at the reporting date is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the
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statement of profit and loss.

Der nition of financial ts

The Company derecognizes a financial asset on trade date only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when It transfers the financial asset
and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Company neither transfars nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards af
ownership and continues to cantrol the transferred asset, the Company recognises its
retamed Interest in the asset and an associated llability for amounts it may have to
pay, If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Company continues toe recognise the financlial asset
and also recognises a collateralised boarrowing for the procesds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety {(e.g. when the
Company retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company
aliocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it
continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer
recagnises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the
transfer. The difference between the carmmying amount allocated to the part that is no
longer recognised and the sum of the censideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is recognised In the statement of profit and loss. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income s
allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no
longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts

i
i ificati jebt it

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial llabilities or as equlty In
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

Equity instruments

An egquity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments Issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds recaived, net of direct |ssue costs,

ial liabiliti

Financlial liabllitles are classified as elther financial liabilitles ‘at FVTPL' or “other
financial llabiities”,

Einancial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the firancial liability is either held
for trading or |t is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

« it has been acquired or Incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it
in the near term; or

on |nitial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financiat instruments
that the Company manages together and for which there is evidence of a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
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» It is aderivative that is not designated and effective as a hedaging Instrument,

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may also be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

« syuch deslgnation eliminates or significantly reduces @ measurement of
recagnition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

+ the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed and Its performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with the Company's documented risk management
or |nvestment strategy, and Information about the grouping is provided
internally en that basis; or

« It forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and
Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments permits the entire combined contract to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising
an remeasurement recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except for the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability which is recagnised In other comprehensive
incame.

The net gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit and loss incorporates any
interest paid on the financial liability.

Sther fi ial liabiliti
Ofker financial liabilitissare initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective Interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method |5 a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period, The
affective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or {where appropriate) a
shorter period; to the net carrying amount on Initial recognition.

Trade and other payables are recognised at their transaction cost, which is its fair
value, and subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Financial assets and liabllities are offsat and the net amount reparted in the balanca
cheet when there |5 a legally enfarceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

2B Cash and Cash and cash eguivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term
cash equivalents  depasits with an original maturity of three months or less.

2.9 Borrowing Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
cost qualifying assets are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. The Company considers a period
of twelve menths or more as a substantial peried of time.
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Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalization, All other borrowlng costs are recognised In the statement of
profit and loss in the period in which they are Incurred.
Retirement benefit and termination benefits

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Company pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Company has no legal or constructive
cbligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service In the current and prior
periods, Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions,

For defined benefit retirement the cost of providing benefits is determined using the
projected unit credit methed, with actuarial valuations being carried out for half pay
lzave at the end of sach annual reporting pericd. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation is determined by dlscounting the estimated future cash ocutflows
using interest rates of government bonds. In countries where there is & deep market
in high-guality corporate bonds, the market rate on those bonds that are denominated
in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation are used. However, for
retirement benefits like gratuity the provision |s made on the basis of 15 days of
salary (lL.e. Basic + DA) for the month of March (i.e. 15/26 x (Basic + DA) for the
month of Mareh). This amount of provisian is for the entire year and is recognised
propartionately in every guarter whereas for superannuation fund the provision is
recarded an a monthly basis, which [s calculated @ 15% of Salary (l.e. Basic + DA) of
gach manth, These are charged to statement of profit and loss at the end of each
pariod.

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to
the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding Interest), is
reflected In the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other
tomprehensive income in the periad in which they occur. Rerneasurgment recognised
in other comprehensive Income is reflected iImmediately in rétained earnings and will
not be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss. Past service cost is. recognised
in the statement of profit and loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest 15
calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net
defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categaorised as follows:

= service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, a5 well as gains

and losses on curtailments and settlements);
. net interest expense or income; and
Y remeasurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs In the
statement of profit and loss in the line item empioyee benefits expense. Curtaliment
gains.and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

When the benefit of a plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit
relating to past service by employees is recognized in profit or loss on a
straight line basis over the average period until the benefits become vested.
To the extent that the benefits vest immediately, the expenses is recognized
immediately In statement of profit and loss.

The Company provides retiring  benefits in the nature of provident fund,
superannuation and gratuity to its employees.
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QObligations for contribution to provident fund and superannuation fund are classified
as defined contribution plans whereas retiring gratuityis classified as defined benefit
plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recagnised at the eariier df when the entity can
no langer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when the enltity recognises
any related restructuring costs. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period are discounted to their present value,

In the case where the acceptance of requests made by employees under the scheme
Is at the sole discretion of the Company, the expenditure incurred on acceptance of
the request is charged off to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which it is
incurred.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability Is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and
salarigs, annual leave and sick leave In the period the related service s rendered at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that
service.

Liabllities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related
cieryice.

Other long-term employee benefits

Ligbilities recognised In respect of ather long-term employes benefits are measured at
the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the
Company in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date. The

expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the pericd of employment using the
same accounting methadology as used for defined benefit retirement plans. Actuarial
gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited ta the statement of profit and loss in the period
in which they arise. These obligations are valued annually by independent gualified
actuaries.

The Company is providing benefits in the nature of compensated absences to its
employaes which are classified as other long-term employee benefits.
Tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax.

Currant tax Is provided st amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date
and includes any adjustment to tax pavable in respect of previous years. Subject to
excepticns below, deferred tax Is provided, using the balance sheet method, on all
temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and
liabjlities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes;

« tax payable on the future remittance of the past earnings of subsidiaries where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be cantrolled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse In the foreseeable future:
and
deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is more likely than not
that they will be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
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apply to the year when the asset Is realized or the liability Is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reparting
date. Tax relatingto |tems recognized directly in other comprehensive |ncome is
recagnised in the statement of comprehensive incomeand not in the statement of
profit or loss, )

Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet method, on all temporary
differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts far financial reporting purposes,

Deferred Tax Assets Include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the
tax laws In India, which likely te give future sconomic benefits in the form of set off
against future income tax liabllity. MAT Is recognized as deferred tax asset In the
balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the
future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realized.

The carrying amaunt of deferred tax assets Is reviewed at each reporting date and is
adjusted to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficlent taxable profit will be
evallable to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes |evied
by the same taxation authority and the relevant entity intends to settie its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments: On March 30, 2019,
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty aver
Income Tax treatments which is to be applied while performing the determination of
taxable profit (or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax
rates, when there is uncertainty over Income Tax treatments under Ind AS 12.
According to the Appendix, companies need to determine the probability of the
relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments, that
the companies have used or plan to use in their income tax filing which has to be
considered to compute the most likely amount or the expected value of the tax
treatment when determining taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and tax rates.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition - (i) Full retrospective
approach - Under this approach, Appendix C will be applied retrospectively to each
prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, without using hindsight and (i)
Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying Appendix C recognized by
adjusting equity on Initial application, without adjusting comparatives.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS Appendix C is annual period beginning on or
after April 1, 2019. The company wlll adopt the standard on April 1, 2019 without
adjusting comparatives. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C would be
insignificant in the standalone financial statements.

Amendment ta Ind AS 12 - [ncome Taxes : On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate
Affairs Issued amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes’, in
connection with accounting for dividend distribution taxes.

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognize the Income tax conseguences
of dividends in profit or |oss, other comprehensive income or equity according to
where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events,

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after
April 1, 2012, The company is currently evaluating the effect of this amendment on
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the standalone financlal statements,

Amendments to Ind AS 19 ; On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued
amendments to Ind AS 19, 'Emplayee benefits’, in connection with accounting for plan
amendments, curtallments and settiemeants.

The amendments reguire an entity :

« To use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net
interest for the remainder of the period after a plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement; and
To recognlze in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or 8 gain or loss on
settlement, any reduction In a surplus, even if that surplus was not previously
recognised because of the impact of asset celling,

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after
April 1, 2019, The company does not have any impact on account of this amendmaent.

Dividend
Dividends Incames from [nvestmeants are to be recognised when the right to receive
the dividend is established.

Interest

Interest income from a financial asset Is recognised when It is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income |s accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which Is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on Initial recognition,

Claims are accounted for in the statement of Profit and Loss based on certainty of
their reallzation.

3. Critical accounting judgemeants and key sources of estimation uncertainty:

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, which are described in note 2, the
management of the Company is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other scurces, The
estimates and associated assumplicns are based on histonical experience and other factars that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the ravision and future periods If the revision affects both
current and future periods.

4 1 Critical judgements in applving accounting policies;
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The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see note 4.2
below), that the management have made in the process of applying the Company's accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements

4.1.1 Financial assets at amortised gost:- S

The management has reviewed the Company's financial assets at amortised cost in the light of its
business model and have confirmed the Company's positive intention and ability to hold these
financial assets to collect contractual cash flows. Details of these assets are set out in note 28.

4.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty:

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year;

4.2 1 Useful lives of property. plant and equipment:

As described in note 2.3 above, the Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant
and equipment at the end of each reporting peried

4 2 2 Fair value measurements and valuation procasses.

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable data to
the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation.
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Eastern Investments Limited
Motes to the Financial Stalements
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Investments Limited
Motes to the Financial Statements
3 = Investmants

Man current
3.1 Investmant in subsidiaries

Amount in Bs. Iakhs

] Particulars

As at31,03.2024|

A5 8t 31.63.2023

_Investimes lrﬁﬁ#i‘ﬁm_mm:
Development Compa

The Orissa Minersl ; iy Limited
3000, 83 shares of Rs. 10 sech flly gakd up)

21,500.98.

23,500,598

The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited
[(43,851, 855 shares of A5, 10 each Tully paid up)

4,362.53

4,367.57 |

= -

vents {all fully paid)= classified as at cost

The Borres Coal Company Limited {In lemoih'*
(B, 640 sharea of Re. 1 sach fully paid up)

25,863.51

tanal infarmation

Agoregate carryihg vaiue of qusted investroents

Arying value [Tl

25,863.51

Aggregate amount af imparmant in valus of nvestrments

Mole 1 -The compeny M's Barrea Cosl compang limited s stuck off 85 per Minisiry Of corporate affaics wabs:ta, the co

value of investment in Borres coal company limited: snd corrspanding impalrmant amount (s wriien off from the books of accounts

MEany 13 Under mudation Accordingly, fhe

Mesten 2 - The compary hag an inveatment amounbing 1o Rs 4 052 52 lekhs i 18 subsidiary, ‘The Slsre Slone Company Limied” The sbove investment confiniss
te bo valusa &l cost and no provision for impairment has beon mada an pac ind As-108, Finangial Instrumants. whareas as per the laiest audited financial

satements of the subsdhary, 15 net warth is negebive. Hm,mlwmludtmmmnlmnrmr oparatans has anharced and the losses

incurrad by the sisbsidiary shall be recovered in dus course.
3.1.1 Details of subsidiaries

D-munrmnrhmﬂw;mlmmnmmm‘mmmnu-m:-

0] Unguated investmeants al cost

af tion Propartion of ownarship interest /
Place of Incopora ati ts held Company
Nama af the subsidiary Principal activity wnd principal place af vating righ Byt
business e “!
At 31.03.2024 21.05.2023
The Orissa Mineral Duvalopment Campsny Limied T“:E‘::‘“””m tndia 0.5001 05001
Mining,
Tha Bisea Stone Lime Cormpany Limited :‘;’;’n;“""‘ LU 05001 6.5001
- 3:2 Dthar investments
Man-
Wil Farticulars A5 Bt 31.02.2024) u-t:n..sa.nl—sl
(1) Quoted investmants st Fair Value
= — _a) Investmants in squity instrumants {3l fully paid) : |
H.O.F.C Bank = e
LT.C. Umited [Ordinary Shares of An. /- =ach) an.5 s
RFSC Llhilf-l’urrrqll'f Disnergarh Power Supply Co- Lid.) &0.51 35,68
Crael Autiaricy of Inha Limftod = 1.51 s
1T Fnancial Sarvices Limited 063
fallance Industries Limited o a5t
BEML LAND ASSETS LIMITED asaj o
Sharat Earth Movers Umees o] i
| T™he Associated Carment Company Linited. — 1010 _6.6T .
Wecdlands Multispeciaity Hospital Lmited 0.10 _ Dae
| TS W Limited {farmarty, Jirdal Vjaynagar Stear; o | a..;;
" | vatal - quoted invastmants in saqulty Instrumants (a) 227.95 184,57
b) Investmants in mutunl fands 3t Fair Value
Eastar Shars - U Trust of Indis P £at
| Eopwal Growtn Unit Schieme 1953 (Master Gam 1654] ¥ a3 48
' Total - quoted invastments in mutusl funds (B) B.91 7.29
|| Totni - quoted non-current investments {isa+h) 236,88 19185 |




A} Investments in squity instrumants {all fully paid)

Titagarh Wagon Limited (Formarly Titagesh Industries Limited|* 1058 16,58
Ispat Profikes Limited * 0.0 C.06
Eastern News Papen{Formaly Chora Investmant Co, LEd,) 8,48 N B0
The Busrakwr Coal Company Limited |In Uglidation] = 4087 40,87
Kinnisan Jute Mills Company Lmited * o 2707
= Union Jute Compary Limited = 75.05 2505
Kumardhuts Fireciay & Sdica Works Limited = 008 009
Heamaen Climax Manufacturing Limited * 9.58 9,58
T_r!_[a_lln_p_l.li_ Deveinpment Company Limited = 587 587 |
Birds Jute & Exports Limitad = a.0% 4,99
| Sijua [Hhemahy Electric Supisly Compary Limited, . 4.90 = 4,90
Total - unguoted investmants in lu&r instromants (&) 188518 155.16
. hg Invesimants in prlﬂr!.m:: Ehares &k cost R
s O s - | 0.15 | 0.25
5 5% Kumarghabi FIrH!H'f b Sifica Works Limdted [2nd F'mfum‘sm}' | 0.%2 0.52
Q.E'Hu Kumardnubl Enqlwtng \\'nrhj Limiteq = D4 0.0a
L Total - ungouted investments in prefargnca shares (b) 113 111
—__&] Invesiments In debentures at cogt__
_a:ummwu Enginearing Warks Limited = [T [
debentures [c) 027 0,27
—Tolal - unquctad non-Curtent investments (ii=n+hsc) —_isesa 156.54
Total - other pon=current investmaents [{i}+{il}] 303.40 348.39
_Additional information 0
of quoted investments and market nlun the 13686 191,85
Aggregate ameunt of unquoted investmants (i) 156.54 156,54
_Aggregate amount of impalrment in value of Investmants 156,44 15644
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p A5 |
3.2.3

The uncartakings of the following compenies have been taken over by
the Gowermmant: -

(a}y Bird & Compamy Limsed

b} Dishargarh Power Supply Compony Limited {Biher unig),

\E) Kinnisan Jube Mits Company. Limited.

(4} Kumardhubi Emginsering Waorks Limited.

&) Siua [ Mhemah] Blectric Supply Company Limitsg,

{f} Union Jute Cormgany Limited,

Compensaten recermbie by the company in

* Mark represents investmants which have baen provided for impairmant.

3.2.4 Category-wise other Invastments - as per Ind A% 109 classification

ragpact of s Investments in mu-mdqzuenﬁ:ru,nuununuybe.lhmulhwewm

. Asab31.03.7024 _As et 31.02.3033

F‘Innrm:uspm mandstorily carried at fair value thropgh profit or logs 236.65 191,850

Financial sseats mandatodily carred st Amortized cost 156.54 156.540
Legs: Aggregate amount of impairment In value of inyeitnents [156.44) (156,440

Tatsl 236.96 191.950

et 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
e ol vt Na of Shares Markat Valug Mo of Shares Warket Valsa

|irvedtments valued at Falr Vilue
Mastar Shars - Unk Trist of dndin mi 168 2,850,00 L33
Capital Growth it Schesne 19932 {Mester Gabn 1992) ml 731 300006 558
DRFSC Ltd (F (Farmaily ﬂu.h-wm  Powar Supaly Co, Ltd, :l SeirH 60,51 3d, 77000 1560
The Associates Cament Conmparty Limited. = S p— e
Brarat Earth Hovers Lamited 108 6,89 29000 251
BEML LAND ASSETS LIMITED 0.53

“Ralianca Industres Limited o e i i
A Firanclal Services Limited 0,63
Stmel Autherity af Indis Limites = e TR B
LY.L Lifmited (Ordinary Shares of Be. L/~ wach) Soite] G4 gn P g
HOFC Bank R 1504 | 45,46 2ot 0 429
‘Wacdiands Multispeciaiity Hospizal Limsmd = PR, adi e =
35 W Limieg (formerty, JIncal Vijaynagos Stesl) ”i 16




invEstie in unquated equity shares valusd a1 Cost
Titagarn Wagan Limiited (Formarty Taagarh industres Limited |* sis| T B15.05 i
| ispat Frofiles Limited » s00 0,06 ro .08
Emssarm News Pepar{Formaly Chors Investmant Co. Lid | = Raoh o 1b HLDY 040
The Burrakur Coal Comaany Limited (In Uguidation) = B a75,200,00 a7 475,300.00 S0ET
Kinnissn Jute Mills Company Limitsd = = 1569500 Ty 25, B804 Fer
lmion Jute Company Lmited = B 102k e 10,0780 35.05
Kumasdhubl Firectay & Sdica Works Limitag = 148, 76,00 . 144 oA 00 20,68
Woiman Climas Menafacturing Limited * i usg 13,588.00 551
The Karanpura Development Company Limited = E0.00 5AY #4.040,00 L7
Birds Jute & Exports Limited * ASEE B0 T 4,830,00 s
Sl [herriah) Electric Supply Company Limited. * FA09L00 43 4,037 00 i
Irveitmants in prafersnce shares valund at Cost
7% Birds Jute & Exports Limied = 2R3.00 015 6100 615
s; Hurrardhuls Faeclay & Sifica Works Limibed (2nd Prefensnce)= 130600 (:H 106000 L]
9,59 Kurnardhubl Engmeering Works Limitad * supe o oy a4
Ievestments I debentures valued at Coxt
% Rumardhudi Enginesnng Works Limited = wh.00 027 AH.0D aly
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Eastern ILnvestments Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

4. Other financial assets

Amount in Rs. lakhs

Non-current
As at As at
Particuars 31.03.2024| 31.03.2023
{a) Terrn deposits with banks with maturity of more than 1 vear - 437.00
Secured, considered good
{b) Other receivables 1.15 1.15
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Gross other non-current financial assets 1.15 438.15
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful other financial assets
(a) Other receivables (1.15) (1.15)
MNet other Non current financial assets - 437.00
Current
As at As at
Sarticulars 31.03.2024,  31.03.2022
(@) Security deposits and earnest money deposits
Unsecured, consideraed doubtful 0.31 0.31
(b} Term deposits with banks with maturity less than 1 year 692.07 207,77
-0ther investments
-Unsecured, considered good
-Unszcured, consideraed deubtful 0.12 D.12
(d) Other receivables i -1 001
Gross other financial assets o 692.50 208.21
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful other financial assets
(b) Interest accrued on other investments 0.12 0.12
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful other financial assets 0.12 __0.12
Net other current financial assets 692.38 208.09

Y




Eastern Investments Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
5 Tax assets Amount in Rs. lakhs
MNon-current
As at
Particulars As at 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Tax assets
-Rdvance income tax
Unsecured, considered good 234,76 234,52
Tax liabilities
- Provision for Income tax 175.85 182.66
Total non-current tax assets 58.91 51.86
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Eastern Investments Limited
Motes to the Financial Statements

& Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

The following is the analysis of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities presented in the balance sheak:

Amount in Rs. lakhs

As at As at
Particul
AU 31.03,2024 31.03,2023
Deferred tax assets 1162.76) [150.37) 1
Deferred tax liabllities 48,20 3B.03
(121.47) (1131.44)
2023-24
Deferred tax liabilities / assets: L
Opening| Recognised Rm:ngnise;l' in Closing balance
Particulars balance as at in profit or Bk o .er as at
01.04.2023 logs| SOMPTS I‘“*'“’ 31.03.2024
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities
On' differznce between book bafance and tax balance of fined assets 0.00 - 0,00
Tax impact on fair value gain/{loss) on investment classified as FVTRL iB.93 .35 45,29
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities 38.93 9.36 - 48.29
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
On difference bistween book balance and tax balance of foied assets 0,00 - - 0.40
Provision fer compensated absences, gratuity and other employes
benefits .93 0.0
Tax impact on Remeasurament gain/{less) arising from defined benefit : :
obligation 1.50 (0.0 1.43
Frovislon for doulbtful debts ./ advances and others 148.82 i9.46 - 168,28
Tax affect of items constituting deferred tax assets 150.37 19.46 (0.07}) 169.76
|
Deferred tax liabilities / {(assets) (net) (111.44) (10.10) a.07 (121.47)

2L
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Eastern Investments Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

8.1 Cash and cash equivalents

Amount In lakhs

; As at As at
Particuiars 31.03.2024|  31.03.2023
{a) Cash on hand
(b) Balances with banks
(1) Balance with scheduled banks
(1) In current account 2.53 7.08
Total cash and cash equivalents 2.53 7.08
8.2 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
" As at As at
PaTOGars 31.03.2024|  31.03.2023
Bank balances other than cash and cash eguivalent
{1) Earmarked balance with scheduled banks
(a) Unpaid Dividend 9.12 9.12
In deposit account (in deposit account with original
maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 10,00 50.00
months)
Total other bank balances 19.12 59.12
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Eastern Investments Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Amount in lakhs

9 Loans
Current

Particulars As at 31,03.2024| As at 31.03.2023
Loans to related parties
Unsecured, considered doubtful 1,500.00 ~1,500.00
Gross other financial assets 1,500.00 1,500.00
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful loans
Loans to related parties e 1,500.00 | _1,500.00
Total alluwagi:_e__fur haq  and doubtful loans 1,500.00 1,500.00

Net loans

(Note:An agreement for loan amount of Rs. 15.0 Crore between the lender, EIL and the
borrower,B5LC (subsidiary Comapany) was entered inte on 05.06.2012, EIL being a NBFC
Company, as per netification DNBS.193 G (WVL)-2007 dated 22.02.2007, XIII of para 8 of Non
performing assets, provision was made in the books of accounts of EIL for non receipt of
principal or Interest for a period of six months or more .




Eastern Investme

10 - Share copital

nts Limited

Motes to the Financial Statements

Amount in lakhs

Particulars As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
Equity share capital 134.44 [EENEE
144, 44 144.44
Authorised share capitaf: ===
13,500,000 fully paid shases of RE: 10/~ ach 1,350.00 1,350.00, ¥
1,350.00 1,350.00
Issued and subscribed share capital comprises:
1,844, 387 Fully paud shares of Rs. 10/- each 14, 44 144.44
e 144.44 144.44
10.1 - Fully paid equity shares
Partlculars Mo. of shares Amoliak
Balance as at 01.04.2022 1,444,387.00 144.44
Issue of shares . z
Balance as at 31,.03.2023 1,444 387.00 144.44
Issue of shares — =
Balance as at 31.03.2024 1,444 ,387.00 144.44

[a} The Company Nas only one ciass of eguity shares having a par valug of Rs, 10/~ each. Each share holder 15 eligiple for one vote par
share The dividend propased by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of sharehoiders, except Incase of interim gividend. In
tme mvent of liguidation; the aguity sharehoiders are eligible to recoive the remalning assets of the Company, after distrebution of all

preferentiagl ampunts, in proparcion of their sharehoidma.

10.2 Detalls of shares hald by each sharaholder holding more than 5% of shares
Shares in the Company hield by each shareholger hoiding more than $ percent shares specifying the numoer of shares hald,

. Asat

Particulars As at 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
% of holding of| Mo, of shares %0 of holding
b St _ ghares)] ~  held]  ofshares
1. Rastriva lspat Nigam Limited 736,638.00 51.00% T36,638.00 51.00%
2. Presigent of [ndiz 2268,114.00 15.79%% 226,114.00 15.79%
3, Life Ipsurance Company of indla TH.517.00 B dda% F8.517.00 5445
4, Others _ 401, 118.00 2% 401,118.00 1.7
ﬁﬂ!ﬂ". 387.00 100.00%:) 1,444 387.00 100.00%:

10,3 The getails of shares heid by the molding company 15 also covered-in the note no. 18.2
10.4 There i5 no movement I theé aquity share capital duning tné current penod

10.5 A reconcifiation of the number of shares gputstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period.
Particulars Equity Shares
Number Face Value (Rs.} fs. in lakhs
Shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year 1,444 387 | Re 10/- Tdd 44
fSnares gutstanding as at the end of the year 1,444 387 | Rs, 10/- 144,44

10,6 Issued and subscribed
115,512,000 No. of Equity Shares have bees allotted s fully paid dp pursoant 3.8 contract without p@yment being recelved In Cash

iy 257.41% No, of Equity Shares wers aligred for censderation ather than cash i casceilabion of 55 340 Qrainzry eQuity sharg m tErm=s of (e
schizme G @rmalgarmakin pursuant 1o the Oroer No GESE daobed 04,0984 possed by the Gowerningnl al India, Ministry of Law, Justice and Company
Aftairs. in torms of Secton 196 of the Compadias Act, L9468, whershy the erdertakings of the Compankes, vz () The Sendra Investments Co. Lad.,
(i} The Ordal [avestments Co Lid., (i) Garoda Inyestmests Coo L, {iv) The Lowrence [nvestments ang Property Co. Ledi, (#) The Seneral
1ayestments and Trust Co. Ltd,, (v} Birds Trading and Investmenis Co Lid, wame dissolvid and vested in this Cormpany, the Besulting Company, With
effpct from 10th Sepramber, 1985 (the Appointed Day)

ity 4, 77055 Mo of Equity Sheres were sllolied on preferantisl basis for consideraton other then cash towsrds acguzsition of §5.219 na. of Equity
shares of The Orissa Minerals Development Company Lid, and 4,.34.48.805 no of Eguity shares of The Bisra Stooe Lime Compsny [td Fram
Gavernment ol ladis 0 wrms af duly sgproved restrusturing scheme-{Refer Nobe baiow),

10.7 Restructuring scheme
13 Im terms of the Sehame af Restructuring opproved by the Ureon Cabinet, Eastern Investment Lig, (EIL) hao aosuired 962158 no. of Equity shenes of

{including BS, #18 Shares from the Gove of ledia) |2 The Ofnse Minergls Developme)it Company Lid {OMOC) ard 4,34,48,805 no. of Equity shares
friom The Beare Stanme Lime Company Lid (B5LE) during the year ended 31 03-2010

{17 Consequent to this sbove arrangement,; wial holding ot the Govammeéent of India o the peid capital of EIL had become 56.79%% gnd the haiging of
EIL | OMOC 2rd BSLE had become mors than 50% of paid caplal of respective companirs, abtordingly, EIL had become Governmens Campany and
sise tiue haiding compary ol OMBE and BSLE with sfect from 18th March, 2010

rirpronpaling 51% of Shass Capdtal of EIL from tha Gewt. of Indis ang thareby EIL has become subsidiary of RINL, A s reol
Gowt. of Ingdia nas thus come down to 15 FO%,




Eastern Investments Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

11 Other Equity

Amount in lakhs

F As at As at
PadSeutary 31.03.2024| 31.03.2023
Capital Ragerye 76,57 76.57
Investment Reserve - -
Hesesve Fund (Special Reserve) 1 OHE.B3 1,088.83
Securities Premium 23,334.34 23,334 .34
GEneral reserve 965.73 855.73
Profit-and loss 1,510.08 1,107.78
Total 26,575.55 26,573.25
Amount in Rs. lakhs
Reserves and surplus
% Reserve Retained
Particulars Capital Investment Fund Securities | General | earnings Total
Other squity Reserve Reserve (Special Premium FEsServe Profit and
Reserve) loss
Balance as on April 1, 2022 76.57 = 1,088.83 | 23,334.34 965.73 1,465.32 | 26,930.79
Profit for the periad = - - ). - (357.56) (357.586)
Other comprenensive income for the .
year, net of taxes ) .02 i
Fayment of dividend & DOT 3 =
Appropriation to reserves r = * -
Balance as on March 31, 2023 76.57 - 1,088.83 23,334.34 965.73 1,107.78 26,573.25
Profit for the period - 2 : 2430 2.10
Othar comprekensive incame for the . R - 0.20 .20
year, net-of taxes = — i M
Payment of dividend & DOT - = - x =
Appropriation to reserves . =, | |, ) [ : =
Balance as on March 31, 2024 76.57 - 1,088.83 23,334.34 965.73 1,110.08 26,575.55




Eastern Investments Limited
Motes to the Financial Statements
Amount in lakhs
12 Provisions
Mon-current

Particulars As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

(a) Provision for employee benefits
(1) Retirement benefits obllgations

(1)} Retiring gratuity 5.56 5.93
(2) Other Long-term amployee benefits

(1) Super Annuation Fund 14.75 12.95
(i) Half pay leave 0.64 0.70
(i) Compensated absences 0.88 219
(3) Other provisions -

Provision for rates and taxes 48.52 48.52
Total non-current provisions 70.35 70.29

Current
Particulars As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

{a) Provision for employee benefits - -
(1} Retirement benefits obligations - -
(i} Retiring gratuity - -
(2} Other Long-term employee benefits - -
(1} Super Annuaticn Fund - -

(il) Half pay leave - -
(ili) Compensated absences - -
(3) Other provisions - -
Provision for rates and taxes - -

Teotal Current provisions - -

Other provisions

Other provisions [See note 12.01]

Balance as at April 1, 2023 48.52
Additional provision recognised -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 48.52

12.01 Rent and cess on land revenus

1. The company pad Rent and Cess on Land Revenue on Lawrance Property at Baura @& Rs 2,012 per year Uil 31 03 2001
with the office of the Revenue Inspastar

2 The company had not accepiad fne substantial increase in such charges from 2001-02. therefore continued to provide
liatibty an the basis of claims recaived. In absance of any formal claim by the concarmed department. ameunt of such claim .:iff
any) has heither been ascartained nor considerad in the accounts from the financial year 200805 onwards:

3 A letter referance no BN/ Lawrence progerty £ 0T dbt. 1403 2078 has been issued to Block Land & Land Reform office
with & copy to District Land & Lang Reform office and Dircetor of Land Record and Service. |t hias been reguestad in the lattar
|lo provide the land tax dues by BLELRO for payment by EIL and also requesled to consider the compensation for the land
scquired by the Govt of WB  which is yet 1o be received In sccordance wilh the judgment passed by Additiona! Distict
Judge Subssguently lefter datad 5 4 2018 issuad to Additional District Magestrate LR & DLLRO, Gewt of W B with a copy
to Principal secrtary and Land Reform Commissioner . Govl of W.B o expedite the matiar

4 Infarmation theough RT) Aot nas bean sgught on 17 06 2078, by which it has bean asked the due fand tax far 48159 Acres
and whetner any notice for the.game has beaan 1ssued by (he dapartmeant A reply was recewed on 28 068 2018 on tha ATI
appiication which states Cuole * The matter of realistion of land revenue in case of subject land 'does not arise and as such
thers is no guestion of raising demand of land revenue in respect of satd land” Unquote
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Eastern Investmenls Limitad
Motes to the Financial Statements

13 Trade Payables

Current

Amounk in Rs, lakhs

Particulars

Az at 31.03.2024

Asg ak 31.03.2023

{1) Tetal outstanding cues of micro enterprises and
small enterprisas {(S=e note betow)

(2} Total ouistanding dues of Lreo0e payatles other
than micro anterpnses and small enterprises
(&) Trace pavables for-supplies anc services
{b) Others
Creditors for accrued wages and salanes

0-50

0.50

Motes:

1. There are no dues payable to Micro and Small Entarprises 25 defined in the Micro, Smisll and Medium
Enterprises Develapmant Act, 2006 which have beéen determined to the extent such parbes have been

dentified-on the bases of information available with the Comosny

2. Trade Payables aging schedule as g 31.03.2024

i In Lakhs)

Outstanding for following periods from transaction date
Purticulars
Less than | year 1-2 years 2-3years il Tutal
3 yeurs
(i MSML =
til) Ehhers - - (.50 030 |
{iai] Disputed dugs - MSME —
Liv iDsputed dues - Others -
Total 030
3. Teade Pavabiles aging schedule as ot Mareh 31, 2023 " In Lakhsy
Outstanding for following periods from transpctivn date
articul ['%
i Less than 1 year | I-2 yeurs 2-3 years | WOEE S Tutal
| 3 vears
(T MSME | | =
{1 Chers - .50 - (30
L) Disputed dues - MSME | 5
(v sputed dues - Others | F
Total = | - 0.50 | - .30

5%
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Eastern Investments Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

14 Other financial Liabilities Amount (Rs. in lakhs)
Current
As at As at
Farticulars 31.03.2024]  31.03.2023
{1} Unpald dividends (refer note 14,1 below) 5,12 9.12
(i) Amount payable to related party 172.66 109.52
{lii} Unclaimed amount an redemption of preference shares 2.09 2.09
{Iv) Creditors for other liabllitias
(v) Others B 20.89 __20.86
Total current other financial liabilities 204.76 141.89
Notes:

) Unpaid Dividend relates to Diwvidends unpaid for FY 2011-12 (Rs.2.27 lacs), 2012-13 (Rs. 1 BS lacs), 2013-14 (Rs 0.14
lags), 2015-18 (Rs. 288 Jacs) and 2018-17 (Rs.1.50 iacs), 2017-18 (0.64 lac). As per F No:01/34/2013 CL-V-Part-lll of
General Circular No.04/2021 Dated 28 01.2021 of Ministry Of Corporate Affairs, no additional fees levied upto 15.02 21 In
respect of filng AQC4 excepting normal fees

i) Service cost of deputed empoyees from RIML for Rs 172.66 lacs

v} Other Current Liability consists of L-Remittance (OMDC PF Institution: Rs.1.80 lacs), Liability Profession! Fees (Rs 0,32
lacs), Prov. for contingencies (Rs 1313), Salary ( Rs 0.94 Lac) and EMD (Rs 030 Lac), Tiffin Expenses (Rs 001 lacy,
Telephone exp (| Rs 042 Lacs), Secreterial audit fees (Rs 0 12 lacs), Tax audit fees (Rs 0.14 Lacs), Statutory Auditor { Rs
176 Lakhs) and Others (Rs 1.95 lacs)

3Y



Eastern Investments Limited
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15 Other Liabilities Amount in Rs. lakhs

Current

As at As at
31.03.2024| 31.03.2023

Particulars

{1} Statutory dues

{a) Tax deducted at source 0.29 0.89
(b) Others - 0.01

(il) Other credit balances 2,56 2.56
Total other liabilities Y . 2.85 3.46

Note:Other credit balance is compensation received from property under
disputes in 1946,
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16 Revenue From operation

Amount in Rs. lakhs

- Year ended Year ended
Farticulars 31.03.2024| 31.03.2023
(&) Dividend recewved from subsidiary - -
(B) Dividend received from other investments 4,38 3.72
(c) Interest on Investment - .
(d} Interest income from term deposits 45.83 33.27
(e) |Llability No Longer Required . - -
Total revenue from operations 50.21 36.99

Note: b) Dividend Recelved from: SAIL- Rs. 0.02 Lacs , HDFC-Rs.0.57 Lacs , ITC - Rs.
3.54 Lacs , Reliance - Rs, 0.02 Lacs , Rs. 0.17 Lacs from India Power corporation Itd,
Rs.0.02 from BPML and Rs.0.04 Lacs from ACC .

N\
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Amount in Rs. lakhs

17 Other Income

: Year ended| Year ended
Ot ars 31.03.2024| 31.03.2023
ta) Provision for leave encashment written back -
{B) Fair value gains/(loss) arising from financlal instrument classified as FVTPL 45.01 19,74
ic) Interest on Income Tax Refund 0.17 -
{d) Other miscellanaous income 0.17 0.17
Total other income 45.35 19.91

Mote:Fair value gain (loss) represents change in fair value on the reporting date as compared to previausly
reported fair value of the financial instruments ciassified as Fair vaiue through Profit or Loss (FYTPL).

o7
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18 Employee benefit expenses

Amount in Rs. lakhs

Particulars Year ended Year endad
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
(a) Salaries and wages, including bonus £82.64 3B.75
(b)Y Contribution to provident and other funds:
(1) Provident fund and other funds 1.20 1.20
(2) Superannuation furid 1.80 1.79
(3) Gratuity (0.10) 1.90
(o] Staff welfare expenses (1.37) 4.74
{d) Transfer Expenses -Employees -
(e} Transter Grant-Employees - -
Total employee benefit expense 84.17 48.38
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Amount in Rs, lakhs
19 Other Expenses

Year ended Year ended

Parcuinrs 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

[a) Electricity Charges - 0.15
(B) Rates & Taxes 0.01 0.03
{c) Insurance Charges 0.24 0.04

(d} Auditors remuneration and out-of-pocket expenses

As Auditor 3.07 3.06

(e} Office Rent 2.16 2,08
(F) Late fees paid TDS return 0.39 .
{g) |Professional Fees 3.59 4.15
(h) Advetisement Expenses 4.09 0.65
(1) Travelling Expenses 0.53 D.55
{j) Printing & stationery 0.52 2.49
(k) _ |Other Expenses i _4.79 ) _5.92
Total other expenses 19.39 19.12

Other expenses Includes: Bank charges Rs.0.01 Lacs, Tea & Refreshment Rs.0.07 Lacs, Telephone
Expenses Rs.0.29 Lacs, Demat Charges Rs.0.01 Lacs, Custodian Fees Rs.,0.17 Lacs; listing Fees Rs,
0.47 Lacs, Roc Filing Fees Rs.0.30 Lacs , Tiffin Expenses Rs. 0.12 Lacs , R&M (Comp) Rs. .09 Lacs ,
R&M (Bullding) Rs. 0.52 Lacs ,Misc. exps Rs.0.73 Lacs,postage Rs.0.05 Lacs, Secreterial Audit Rs.
0.14 Lacs , Board meeting Exps. Rs. 0.75 Lacs , Audit Exps Rs. 0.61 Lacs , website hosting exps. Rs
0.29 Lacs and Tax Audlt Exps. Rs.0.17.

<
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20 Income Taxes

20.1 Income taxes recognised in profit and loss

Eastern Investments Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Amount in Rs. lakhs

: Year ended Year ended
Particulars
- 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Current Tax
In respect of the current year - .
In respect of prior years - 3.04
- 3.04
Deferred Tax
In respect of the current year (10.10) (126.76)
(10.10) (126.76)
Tolal income tax expense recognised In the current year (10.10) (123.72)
20.2 Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Deferred tax
Arising on incaome and expenses recognised in other comprehensive (0.07) (0.01)
Income
Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income (0.07) (0.01)
Bifurcation of the income tax recognised in other comprehansive
income into;
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss {D.ﬂn?] {0.01)
(0.07) {0.01)
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Amount in Rs. lakhs

21 Earnings per share

21.1 Basic and diluted earnings per share

. Year ended Year ended
rasacars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Basic and diluted earnings per share [in Rs.] 0.15 (24.76)

and diluted earnings per share are as follows:

The Earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic

Year ended Year ended
Particalnrs 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Profit for the yvear attributable to owners of the
Company 2.10 {357.56)
Earnings used in the calculation of basic and
diluted earnings per share 2.10 (357.56)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
T WeEIgNLed average NUmber ol eguity snares
cutstanding for the purposes of basic and diluted
earnings per share 14.44 1444
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22 Employee benefit plan
22.1 Defined contribution plan

a) Provident fund: Company pays fixed cantribution to Provident Fund at the rate of 10 % on Basic and
dearness allowance.

22.2 Defined benefit plans -
a) Gratuity: Pavable on separation @ 15 days pay for each completed year of service to eligible employees
wha render continuous service of 5 years or more and maximum payable amount is calculated as per Gratuity

Act, The gratuity amount |s not covered and the provision on account of gratuity Is being made as per the
actuarlal vaiuation.

These plans typically expose the group to actuarial risks such as actuarial risk, investment risk, interest risk,
longetivity risk and salary risk.

i. Actuarial risk: It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to ong of the
following reasons:

Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Saiary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary escalation will result into
an increase in Obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality ratés are higher than assumed maortality rate assumption than the
Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there Is no condition of vesting on the death benefit,
the acceleration of cashflow will lead to an actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed
salary growth and discount rate.

Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumead withdrawal rate assumption
than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected.The impact of this will depend on whether tha
benefits are vested as at there signation date.

il. Investment risk: For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets
certified by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, the present
value of the assete |s independent of the future discount rate, This can result in wide fluctuationg in the net
lizbility or the funded status if there are significant changes in the discount rate during the inter-valuation
period.

iii. Interest risk: A decrease |n interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be pantially
offset by an increase in the return on the plan assets,

iv. Longevity risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by refernce to the best
estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life
expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's hability.,

v. Salary risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future

salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase In the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's
liability .

Mo ather post-retirement benefits are provided to these employees,

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the acturial valuations were as follows:

Valuation
As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
Discount rate(s) 7.20% 7.40%
Expected rate(s) of salary increase 5.00% 5.00%
Age 25 & below:3% p.a Age 25 & below:3% p.a
25-35. 3% p.a 25-35: 3% p.a
Witharswal rate 3545 2% p.a 35-45: 2% p.a
45-55: 2% p.a 45-55: 2% p.a
55 & above: 1% p.a 55 & above: 1% p.a

Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss in respect of these defined benefits plans are as follows:-

2




Amount in Rs. lakhs

As at 31.03.2024

As at 31.03.2023

Service cost

Current service cost 0.54 0.50
Past service cost and (gain)/less from settlements
Net interest expansa 0.43 (.35
Components of defined benefit costs
recognised in profit or loss 0.97 0.85
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liabllity:
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in
interest income
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in
demaographic assumptions = -

I | 5 from ch i
Actuana.l (gains)/losses anising from changes in 0.07 (0.18)
financial assumptions
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from experience
assumptions (0.35) 0.16
Components of defined benefit costs
|recognised in other comprehensive income (0.28) (0.03)
Total 0.69 0.82
March 31, 2023 Gratuity
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation 5.03 2.11
Fair value of plan assets - -
Net liability arising from defined benefit
obligation 5.93 5.11
March 31, 2024 Gratuity
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation 5.55 5.93
Fair value of plan assets - -
Net liability arising from defined benefit
obligation 5.55 5.93

Mavements in the present value of the defined beneft obligations are as follows:

Closing defined benefit obligation as at 31.03.2023 5.93
Current service cost 0.54
Interest Cest 0.43
Remeasurement (gains)/losses:
Actuarial (Galns)/losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions 0.00
Actuarlal (Gains)/losses arising from changes in financial assumptions 0.07
Actuarial (Galns)/losses arising from experience assumptions -0.34
Benefits paid by company -1.08
Past Service Cost 0.00
Closing defined benefit obligation as at 31.03.2024 5.55

g -_.-" 'Q‘" 1- '
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22.3 Sensitivity analysis of defined benefit plans

32,3.1 Slgnficant acturial assumption for determination of defined benefit plan are discount rate,
expected salary growth, attrition rate and moratlity rate. The sensitivity analysis below have been based
on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occuring at the end of the reporting
period while haldina all other assumoptions constant.

Sensitivity analysis
Amount in Rs, lakhs

31-Mar-24 ~ 31-Mar-23
Particulars Gratuity Gratuity
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Impact on amount due to
change in Discount rate (- 5.37 5.75 5.76 B.12
/+0.5%)
;‘Z;Tri'?rie[i??fﬁd WRaB Hueits -3.30% 3.43% -2,97% 3.11%
Impact on amount due to
change in Salary growth (- 5.75 5.37 6.12 5.75
{+0.5%)
% Change compared to base due to .
sensitity. [+/(=}9%] 3.49% -3.38% 3.17% -3.05%
Impact on amount due to
change in withdrawal rate (- 5.57 5.55 5.94 5.92
/+10%)
y h ase d
;’;niitirﬁeiifm’;;;‘fd W0:dee dint 0.17% (0.17) 0.17% (0.17)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined
benefit cbligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one ancther
as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of defined berefit abligation
has been calculated using projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is same
as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet

There is no change In the methods and assumptions used in preparing the senstivity analysis fram prior
years,
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23-24 Financial Instruments

23.1 Categories of financial instruments
Amount in Rs. lakhs
Particulars As at 31,03.2024 As at 31.03,2023 |

Financial Assets
Measured at fair value through peafit or lass [FYTPL)
{4) Mandatonly measared

-

[i} Other Inyeimianls 236 %0 191,895
Measured ak amortsed cost
La) Tash and cash pyuivalons 2.53 J.08
{0} Bank batance other than cash and cash equivaients 1913 59.12

{m) Other investmants
{c) Loans at amort=ed cost

{d} Other financal plseti 82 amortised cost £92 38 (45 .09
950.99 8903.24

Financial Liabilites
Mezsgred i amortised ofst 24 76 141.89
204.76 141.89

23.2 Financial risk mansgemant objectives

The Company's princlgal financial instruments gompnse financial fateiites angd Ananciol sdsets. The Company's principel inancial Habilities)
comprises trade pavatile and other financEl tabilities. The main purpese of these finandu ingtruments i to manage short-tarm cash How
and raise linance for the Company's capitsl expendilure program, The Compeny has vanous fingncial #asels such-as trade receivabla and
cash end short-term depodits, which 2rese girectly from ibs operabons.

23.3 Market risk

HMarkst risk is the nsk that the far value of futuie cash fows of a financlal instrumaent wiil fluctuats bacause of changes in markeat prices,

The Company's financial instrument Marksd prices comprige three types of rsk: currency nsk, Intecest rate rick and equity price rsk.
Finariclal instruments affected by market risk include |odns, trade recelvables, pther financlal assets. trade pavables and athar financial

[habibithes

The senslivity. analyses hawe not Desn prepared a5 there 15 no smount cutstanding as dedt, naving-aither fiwed or floatmg interest rates, no
grivatives fingneial Instruments and no financaal instr ks in forgign [a[4]

23.4 Forelgn currency risk managemant
The Company does not undertake any transsction in loresgn cyrrency, consequently, exposules to exchange rate fluctuation does not anise
The Comparty has 2l entered il the transactan 0 currency which & e tunctianal cumrency angd accordingly the fareign currency risk his
beEn minimised 1o a very low lavel

Farelgn currency sensitivity analysis bas nob besn performed comedering the fact that there will not be any impact on the profit or foss of
the Company, #s there ase no foralan currency manetary items.

23 5 Intoreat rate rish managemant
Interest rabe rigk b the rigk that the faer value or future caskfiows of & financial ingtrumant wil Muctuate becauze of changes in markst
iikereut riles, As the Company foes not have any borrewings Ehere (£ not b gignificant exposure to the Intarest rate sk oul oely to the
extenl of recogrution interest portion af fingncial instrument classfied ot amortised cost The Comgany manages It Inferest nsk axposyre
relatmg to the fnancal Instrument classilied at amartised cost By using the rmarket interest rate a5 the aifective interast rate and the
changes in the assets Hahillbies 1% acoountsd tar as inp=rest |1;umg:‘upel:5ﬁ_¥5 with respect o financial assets/tinancial Habilities respactivaly,
Howevar, as there (s 1o primary eapoture b the nerest rate risk the sensibivity anolysis has not been perlrmed by the Corrpany

13.6 Other price risks

The Company s exposed o eguily price rise as the Company has held the investments in equity shares. Althowgh, the Comgany holds
inypgzment for strateqic rather than trading purposes. The senstivity analysis on the profit due changes n equity prices has been parformed
Bl -

33.6.1 Equity price sensltivity analysis 1

The Company's (isted and non-listed eguity sacunties are sesceptible o market price rigk arising framm wncertainges about Future values of
the avestment secorntesd. The Company manages the aguity price rsx by placing lirmits an individuak-and o2l sguily Insfuments wWiich 15
miate subied tv the approval of Beard of Directers, Reports on the equity: portfsdio sre submitiod Lo the Company's senkor managemant on @
raguiar basis. The Company's Board of Dingctors réviews and approves atl equity investment decisions

A1 the reporfing dare, e eapasure to sted equily securities was Ae. 159.63 lakhs jnctuding investrment classified B At falr value ERPougsS
prafis or oss The sensitivity analyss baced on the equity price risiat the end of the reporting pericd hias Doen provided for the iveestmen
Ehese QUi SEcunites ather than investrmant in jdint venturs B given B -

23,7 Credit rish management

ihe Tampany i a nron-banking finance compeny having prmary operation of investing in shares and secunbies, the Inveslinent ahe
penerally made under- the supervisign of Board and with 13 approval ang alse before making the- invesoment, the Company mekes the)
|nyesterenl i shares or securties anly after evaluabing the dredinwarthiness of fhe Company.

23.8 Liguidity risk management |

The Company has investment i bonds, debenluses, sgquity shares, t2m deposits with banke ate and has sufficient owned funds to finance
f% EX1EHNT @nd conEMwing commitments, New Investnents and advances are [ikely to be funded samilarty. The majer capital invesmments, |f
athy, wituld Be fundes by throsgh the these funds hald in the form of myvestment and-tecm daposits and Turther requirement IF any will b2
aoressed fhrpugh the hank lgans, v case réguined

Thea table belew summarises the maturity profite of the Company's firancsl lanilibes basad an Contraciual undiscounted payrtienis

23.8.1 Liguidity and interest rish tables
Thee lolipwing table details the Company's expected mnalurity fof its non-darvanva financial assete, with agreed repayment pasiods The
rpble has been drEwn Bases on the sndiscounted contrpcioal materttes b fnancial assets Induding nterest that will be earneg en those

asters the nclusisn of (Afarmation on son-gervative finanoel assets s Aecessesy (0 order 1o undesstand the Comiing - A
rmanagement as the Houidity (= mangged on.# nel @sset amd bty s, nhﬂrﬂg

b~




Expected maturity for Non-derivative linancial asssts

less than 1 year 1+ years
Mar 31" 2023
Non-interest bearing
a) Other financial asselts 208.09 437.00
Mar 31' 2024
Mon-interast bearing
g} Qther Ninancial assets 69238

date on which the Company may be required to pay

The fallowing table detalls the Company’s remaming contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial labilites with agread repayment
peaniods. The table has been drawn based on the undiscounted cashflows of financial liabilities besed on the earliest date an which the
Company can be required to pay. The table include both interest 2nd principal cashflows. The contractual matirity is based on the earliest

Expected maturity for Non-derivative financial liabllities

less than 1 year 1+ years
As at March 31, 2023
MNon-interest baaring
a) Trade payables 0.50
b Otherfinancial liabilities 141.89
As at March 31, 2024
Mon-interest bearing
a) Trade payables = 0,50
b} Other financial ahilities 204 76 .

24 Fair value measurments

24.1 Fair value of the Company's financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Valuation
technigues
Financial assets and financlal liabilities e and k;:r
Inputs
As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
a} Investments n mutual fund 591 729 |Level - | Quoted bid
prices  In an
active markst
2] Investments in equity instruments (guoted) 227.95 184 57 |Level -1 Quoted md
prices 0 an
active market
2) Investments in eguity instruments (unguotad) 155.16 155.16 |Level - 111 Unguoted
investments at
cast
392.02 347.01

required]

24.2 Fair valye of the financial assets and liabilities that are

Based on EIL Policy investment in subsidiaries (l.e. OMDC and BSLE) s measured at cost. Furthee, in this case diselssura retating to the
fair value of financlal assets and lisbilities that are measured at other than Fair value |Is not required as the management of the company
feels that the carrying amounts of such assets and lisbilities approximate their fair values

bL
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25 Related Party Transactions

A) Parent company
{2) Rashtriya Ispat Nigam Limited

B) Subsidiary company
(a) The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited
(b)) The Orissa Minerals Development Company Ltd,
ic) The Barrea Coal Co, Lbd. (In Ligquidation) Ordinary Shares

C) Other Associates in which Shares are held
(@) The Karanpura Development Co. Lid, {under liquidation)
{b) The Burrakur Coal Co. Ltd. (under liquidation)

D) Holding of Subsidiary in the Paid up Capita of EIL
The Orissa Minerals Developmeant Company Lid.

E) Key Managerial Personnal:

(a} Snri Puspen sarkar CFO from 11th August'2022 anwards
(b} Shri 5 Raja Babu CS from Lith Nov'2022 onwards

(¢} Shri D.K. Mohanty MD from 01,08.2019 to 20.06.2023
() Shri & K. Bagchi MD from 21.06.2023 to 23.01,2024
iFy Shr 5.C.Pancey MD from  24.01.2024 onwards

25.1 Trading transactions Amount in Rs, lakhs)

During the year, The Company entered into the followng trading transactions with related parties

Far the For the Year

Related party MNature of transaction Year Ended Ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
: ; Board Meeting Expenses - =
(&) masntriyia Ispat Bgem Lited Salary of Deputed Employees 62.85 109.82
(b) The Orissa Minerars Dividend Recejved -
Development Company Ltd. Co-Sharing Expensss paid 383.29
{c} The Bisra Stone Lime Company Euard Meeting Expenses .
Limited Co-Sharing Expensas

The fullpwing balances were outstanding st the and of the repeorting periad

Amounts owed by/owed to

Mature of transaction Related parties as at

As at As at
Related party 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
{a) Rashtriva Ispat Nigam Limited Salary of Deputed Employess 172.66 109.82

(&) The Orissa Minerals _ ]
Development Company Ltd

(£} The Bisra Stone Lime Company _
Limited _

25.2 Compensation of Key Management personnel )
The remuneration of directors and other members of Key management personnel durmg the year are as follows:

For the For the Year

Related party MName of the KMP Year Ended Ended
31.032.2024 31.03.2023
g Shin B Kundu (old Dues} 1.01 181
Shart-term benefits e

Shri Puspen Sarkar 1B.77 22:43

Gy
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26 Contingent Liabilities

26.1 Contingent liabilities

(1} Claims against the Company not acknowiedged as debts -
Amount in Rs. lakhs
. As at As at
EREHEUEN 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Rent & Cess on Land Revenue (From
2009-10 to 2023-24 & Hs.7.23 Lacs 11054 103.31
per year]
Stamp Duty on Share Transfer 58.45 58.45
Income Tax Demand 101.66 24 .48
Audit Committee not formed 4,00 4.00
mutation Cost of 49,19 Acre
@Re. 15000 /- per acre. 738 735
Fire for KMP position in Subsidiary 4.00 2.00
286.03 231.62
d

Lawrence Jute Mill Co. Ltd was a company under the erstwhile BIRD & €O, LTD, This comapny had 76.77 Acres of land at
Chackasi,mouza- Bauria , JL No:4in the P.S Bauria, Dist: Howrah, W.B. The company acquired 27.58 Acres of fand 1h the
|year 1976 uner the provision of Sec 6(3) of WB State Acquisition Act 1953, The name of the Tute Mill was siibsequently
changed to Lawrance Investment & Property comapany Ltd w.e.f 09.12.1970. In 1984 Lawrance Investment & Property
comapany Ltd alengwith five other companies ware dissolved and amalgamated with EIL, which 15 a Comapny under erstwnle
BIRD Group, by virtue of order of the Company Law Board under the provision of Sec 395 of the Comapanies Act vide No:
SO/BESEE uated U4.09, 1984 . By virtue of this arder all properties and asset including rights and Intergést as well as labilities
of Lawrance Investment & Property comapny Ltd were vested in EIL. The change of narme of the owner of the property from
Lawrance Investment & Property comapny Lid to EIL an the basis of the order of amalgation is yel to be effected, 1.2 the
praperty is not yet mutabted in the name of EIL

The company had pald Rent and Cess on Land Revenue on Lawrence Property at Bauria @ Rs. 2.012 per year till 31.03.2001
with the office of the Revenue lnspector. The company had not accepted the substantial increase In charges from 2001-032,
therefore continued to provide liability on the basis of tiaims received unto the financiat year 2008-09. Frern the Financial
Yedr 2009 -10 onwards , the liability has been started booking in the contingent llability , which amounts to Rs, 110,54 Lakhs
asan 31.03.2024,

Further letter rel No ElL/Lawrance Property/01 dated 14-03-2018 has been |ssued to Biock Land & Land Reform Office with
4 copy to District Land & Land Reform Office-and Director of Land Records & Servics _ 1t has been requested in the letter to
provige the Land Tax dues by BLELRO Tor payment by EIL and also requested to consider the compsnsation far the iand
acquired by the Govt of WB which is yet to be recelved In accordance with the judgement passed by Additional District Judge.
Subsequently another letter dated 05-04-2018 jssued to Additional District Magistrate (LR} & DLLRO, Govt, of West Bengal
with a copy to Frincipal Secretary and Land Reforms Commissioner, Govt. of West Bengal requesting to expedite the fmatter,
Subsequently, information through RTI Act has been sought an 11-Jun-18, wherein it has been asked the due Land Tax for
49.19 acres and whether any notice for the same has been issued by the department. & reply was received on 28.06.2018 on
the RTL Application which states the following Quaote” The matter of reafisation of land revenus in case of subject land does
nat:arise and as such there is no question of raisng demand of lsnd reverus in respect of said land" Unguote,

a2

There is demand from Addtional Commissioner of Stamp Revenue Gevt of West Bengal for Rs 58.45 Lacs as regards transfar
of shares from Prasident of India in The Orissa Minerals Development Company Ltd (OMDC) and The Bisra Stone Lme
Company Ltd (BSLC) to Eastern Investments Ltd(EIL) to make BSLC and OMDC subsidares of EILThe transaction is
exempted from Stamp duty and the same is communicated to Addtional Inspector General of Registration and Addtional
Commissicnar of Stamp Revenue West Bengal vide Letter Mo EIL/AS/STAMP DUTY/10-2012/01 dated 17th Oct 2012 by the
authorised signatory of EIL. As there Is no response to the letter of the Company till date, the amaount of Rs, 58.45 lacs i
shown as contingent Gability, Further correspondence was made with the Dy. Secretary Finance(Revenus) Dept,,Gove. of
W.8, on 23.02.2018 with a reminder on 11.04.2018.Subsequentiy two letters were issued on 10.07_ 2018 and on 14.05.2019,
16.08.2021,28.02.2022 and 2B.02.2023 but no response has been recelved till finalisation of this Balance Sheet,

{e) Income Tax
Income tax demand In respect of A.Y. 2005-10 and A.Y. 2010-11 amounting to Rs 101,66 lakhs has not m%ﬁ

L onharig o~
- 4

the cases are pending with Appeallate Authority of the IncomeTax Departmant,
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Pens = of se ompanies Act 2013 :
For not complying with section 177 regarding formation of Audit committee , minimum Rs. 1 lac and maximum Rs. S lacs

penalty may be imposed on EIL , Provision for Rs. 1 lacs has been provisded in the books of accounts and balance Rs.4 lacs is
included in the Contingent Liabllity.

(It} Mutation Cost of 49.19 acrs of Land at Chackasi , Bauria , Howrah as per the Govt. of West Bengal Notification |s Rs.7,38
Lacs |

(I} As per section 203(3) of Companles Act 2013 ,a whols time Key Managerial Personnel shall not holld office iIn more than
one company In its subsidiary company at the same time . In the Fy 2021-22 , C5 & CFO of subsidiary company (PMDC) had
been holding additional charge in the Holding company , which is contradiction of provision . As per provision , minimum ane

lakh and maximum 5 Lakhs penalty may be imposed on EIL. Bs. 1 Lkakh has been provide In the books and balance Rs. 4
Lakhs have besn consldered as Contingent Hability.

Name of struck off company or company under |Nature of transactions Value of Value of investment
liguidation investmentas | as on 31.03.2023
on 31.03.2024

The Kinnizan Jute Mills Co,L1d. Inwestments in securlties 27.07 27.07
Kumardhubl Fireclay & Sifica Works Lid. Irvéestments in securities 20.09 20.09
Kumardhubl Engg, Warks Ltd Inwestimants in securities 0.27 0.27
Kumardhubdl Fireclay & Silica Works Lid: Investmeants in securities 0.g2 0.92
Kumardhubl Engg. Works Ltd, Investmants in securities 0.04 0.0
Unlon Jute Co, Ltd, Investments in secunties 25.06 25.06
The Burrakur Cosl Co. Lrd. Investments in securities 40.87 40.87
Halrman Climax Manufarturing Ltd. Investments in securities 9.59 9.59
The Karanpura Development Co. Ltd. Investmenis In securities 5.88 5.BB
Electric Supply Co. Ltd. Investments in securitias 4.90 4.90

Eastern Investments Limited Is a NBFC Company. As per RBI Revised Guldelines on Entry Point Norms, Principal Business
criteria (PBC), a company to be registerad as NBFC should fulfil both criteria (the assets and the incoms Pattern based on the

last audited financial statement) for showing Financial activity as Principal Business, but the Company could not be complied
ane of the entry point norms a5 per RBI revised Guidelines issued by NBFC.
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2L.3. Ratios

Chief Firancial OMficar

SL.No. Name of ratio ::::r"t ﬁ,';;’::' Variations Basis Remarks
1 Currant ratio 3.43 1.88 82% | Current Assets divided by Higher Fixed Deposit was
Current liabilites ungder current asset (verge of
maturity ) comapred to
previous year , which actually
enhanced the current Ratio
2 Debt-Eguity ratio - - - Not Applicable
3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio : : z - |not Appiicable =il
4 Retumn on Equity Ratio 0.000 {0.013) -101% | Net profits after taxes less [ The variation is because of the
Preference Dividend (If any) |absent of Expectional items in
divided by Average the currept year, the effect of
shareholder’s Eguity which nas made an
Impravement |n the profit,
5 Inventory Turnover Ratie = = Not Applicables
] Trade receivables Turnowar ratla - - - Mot Applicable
7 Trade Payabies Turnover Ratio . - = = Mot Applicable
B het Capltal Turnover Ratio 0.099 0.287 -G5%s | Net capital turnover ratios  |Variation i& malnly because of
Net Sales/working Capital. | incresse in current In current
Het saies shall be calculated |Gssets but et salee has qot
a5 total sales minus sales increased correspondingly,
returms.
Working Capital shall be
caiculated a8 current assets
minus-current habilities
9 Net Profit Ratio 0.042 [9.666) -100%: | Net Profit Ratin= Net The variation is bBecaluse of the
Profit/Net Sales. Net Profit  |absent of Expectional items in
Shall be after tax. the current year, the effect of
which has made an
improvement in the profit
10 Return on Capital Employed (Q.0003)) (0.0004) -25% |ROCE= Earnings bafore The variation is because of the
intersst and taxes/Capital marginal decrease of loss in
Employed the current year
Capltal Employed= Tangible
Met Waorth + Total Debt +
Deferred Tax Lizbillty
11 Retum on Investment 0.0001 [ {0D.0268) -100% |Net profits after taxes The variation s becauss of the
divided by Average Non absent of Expectional items |n
Curcent assets. the current year, the effect af
which has made an
improvement In the profit
For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For 8. Chhawchharia & Co
Charterad Accountants .
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